I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONERS 

Petitioners Davis Wright Tremaine LLP, Seattle Deposition 

Reporters, and James Grant were Defendants in the trial court and 

Respondents in the Court of Appeals. 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

The Court of Appeals' decision condones Respondent Jason 

Dillon's effort to exact revenge on Petitioners-including the attorneys 

who exposed his fraud, spoliation and fabrication of evidence in a federal 

lawsuit-by suing them for "recording" telephone interviews because they 

transcribed them. The federal court dismissed the suit, rejecting the same 

claim made here and dashing Dillon's hopes of earning the "fee" his 

former boss promised if he "supported" the case. When Dillon sued in 

state court, the court held the Washington Act Limiting Strategic Lawsuits 

Against Public Participation (anti-SLAPP law), RCW 4.24.525, bars his 

claim. The Court of Appeals reversed in an opinion (Appendix A) that has 

serious implications not only for Petitioners, but for the public at large. 

The Legislature directed that the anti-SLAPP statute be "construed 

liberally to effectuate its general purpose of protecting participants in 

public controversies from an abusive use of the courts." The Court of 

Appeals ignored this mandate, finding Petitioners' gathering of evidence 

was outside the law's protections for acts "in connection with judicial 

proceedings," or "in furtherance of the exercise of the constitutional right 

of petition." The court adopted a narrow, strained interpretation ofthe 
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law, holding it does not protect individuals who exercise First Amendment 

rights nor conduct in furtherance of the right to petition courts for redress. 

This reading is contrary to the statute's language and history, this Court's 

decisions, and a decision by the Court of Appeals just three weeks ago. 

The Court of Appeals also found the trial court erred in granting 

summary judgment, even though undisputedly Dillon contacted Petitioners 

to "clear his conscience" and provide information to "resolve" the federal 

lawsuit and agreed the lawyers could take notes and use his statements. 

The Court of Appeals held that a declaration Dillon submitted in federal 

court presented a fact issue, even though the federal court found Dillon 

"wholly incredible" and ruled after an evidentiary hearing that Petitioners 

did not violate the Privacy Act. The federal court was correct. The Court 

of Appeals should have prevented Dillon from re-litigating the issue. It 

instead rewarded him for filing a retaliatory lawsuit. 

Because this case implicates the fundamental constitutional right of 

petition, this State's policy discouraging abusive use of the courts, and the 

scope of the anti-SLAPP law, Petitioners ask the Court to grant review. 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Protected Conduct Under Anti-SLAPP Law. Whether 

the Court of Appeals misinterpreted the anti-SLAPP law, RCW 4.24.525, 

by ruling its protections for claims targeting "public participation and 

petition" do not protect First Amendment rights or lawful conduct in 

furtherance of the right of petition for redress from a court, contrary to the 
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statute, its legislative history, other Court of Appeals' decisions, and this 

Court's decisions, meriting review under RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2), (3) and (4). 

2. Proper Inquiry Under Anti-SLAPP Law. Whether the 

Court of Appeals erred by accepting the plaintiffs allegations rather than 

considering the evidence, as the anti-SLAPP law requires, undercutting 

the act's protection for constitutional rights. RAP 13.4(b)(3) and (4). 

3. Expectation of Privacy Under RCW 9.73.030. Whether 

the Court of Appeals erred in reversing summary judgment of a claim 

under the Washington Privacy Act, RCW 9.73.030, when the undisputed 

facts dispelled any contention that transcribed interviews were "private" 

communications, but the court ignored and contradicted another of its 

decisions and relied on a perjured declaration. RAP 13.4(b)(2) and (4). 

4. Collateral Estoppel for Federal Judgment. Whether the 

Court of Appeals erred by refusing to accord collateral estoppel to a 

federal court's judgment (after an evidentiary hearing) that the 

transcription did not violate the Privacy Act. RAP 13.4(b)(4). 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Dillon, Former Vice President of a Plaintiff in a Federal Suit, 
Contacted Petitioners to "Clear His Conscience" and Provide 
Information to "Resolve" Ongoing Litigation in Which He Had 
Destroyed and Fabricated Evidence. 

Dillon is the former vice president ofNetLogix, CP 156:3, a 

company that sued T-Mobile in federal court (the Federal Action), seeking 

$28 million, even thoughT-Mobile paid $4.3 million, the full amount 

NetLogix had invoiced, see CP 155 & 180. On August 24,2011, as the 
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case was ongoing, Dillon emailed Petitioner Davis Wright Tremaine LLP 

(DWT) that he had left NetLogix and believed "it would be beneficial to 

T-Mobile/DWT if we had some time to talk about the facts in this case." 

CP 175; CP 271-74. DWT scheduled a call for the next day, CP 194 ~ 44, 

and arranged for a stenographer, Thad Byrd, from Petitioner Seattle 

Deposition Reporters (SDR) to take verbatim notes. CP 205-33. At the 

outset, Petitioner James Grant, a DWT attorney, told Dillon that he was on 

speakerphone, another D WT attorney and an assistant named Thad were 

present, and Thad would be "writing stuff down" so the lawyers would not 

have to take notes. CP 205 at 2:8-15. Dillon said "Okay." !d. Grant also 

told Dillon not to discuss legal advice or attorney communications, but 

only facts, "who did what" and "what happened." CP 205 at 2:18-25. 

Dillon did not say the conversation was private. In fact, he made 

clear he knew T-Mobile would use the information, stating he thought it 

would "resolve" the Federal Action and "clear my conscience." CP 205 at 

3:25-4:1; CP 211 at 27:6-9. He acknowledged DWT would disclose the 

information and said he expected NetLogix's CEO, Scott Akrie, would "be 

pissed" and "try to sue me." CP 211 at 27:10-13. But he proceeded anyway, 

saying "it's the right thing to do," CP 221 at 68:24, and should cause Akrie to 

"drop the case," CP 206 at 7:12-16. He only asked that DWT wait to tell 

NetLogix's lawyers until the next week so he could collect money Akrie 

owed him. See CP 206 at 7:4-15; 213 at 36:25-37:2. 

Dillon also confirmed he had told other NetLogix personnel he 

planned to call DWT, including five employees, "pretty much the entire 
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team," who were "all on board with ... giving you the guys the information 

you need, which I think would be beneficial to resolve this thing pretty 

quickly." CP 205 at 3:21-4:1; see also; CP 273 at 12-13 (stating "most ofmy 

old team would like to speak to you as well"). 

Dillon then revealed NetLogix had spoliated and fabricated evidence. 

He said Akrie decided to sueT-Mobile three months after the contract began, 

when the parties agreed to lower pricing. CP 206 at 9:24-10:2. Akrie told 

personnel to "keep a paper trail," including two sets of files--one showing 

revised prices, and the other containing higher prices. CP 207 at 10:3; 209 at 

19:11-17. Akrie directed Dillon and others to destroy documents reflecting 

lower pricing. CP 210 at 24:15-19. Dillon also destroyed his handwritten 

notes about T-Mobile work and created a new set to support NetLogix's 

claims. CP 214 at 33:5-12; 39:10-40:22; CP 215 at 45:5-16. Dillon said he 

was "coached" to make false statements. CP 213 at 34:18-20. He admitted 

that half ofNetLogix's claims were for "work that was not done or is just 

made up." CP 219 at 58:2-9. Finally, Dillon said Akrie "offered me 10 

percent of the profit of this lawsuit to support him," saying "I just need you to 

support this," and "we're going to be rich." CP 215 at 43:13-22. 

Dillon agreed to put the information he shared in a declaration, 

CP 213 at 36:25-37:1. Grant prepared a draft, and another call took place 

September 16,2011. CP 199-200 ~ 61; CP 253 at 3:8-18. A stenographer 

again took verbatim notes, see CP 224-33. Dillon said the declaration was 

accurate except one revision, and agreed to sign it. CP 224 at 4: 15-19. 

Grant sent a revised version to him the next day. CP 200 ~ 61. 
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Nine days later, Dillon emailed DWT that he would not sign the 

declaration, claiming it was "incomplete" (not inaccurate). CP 200 ~ 61; 

CP 235. He copied his email to Akrie, see id.; CP 237 & 448 ~ 4, and 

when he later told Akrie about his refusal to sign, Akrie thanked him and 

said he would "not forget" what he had done. CP 87:15-16; CP 237. 

B. Judge Martinez Dismissed the Federal Action for Spoliation 
and Fraud, Finding Dillon's Attempt to Disavow His 
Statements "Wholly Incredible." 

DWT had learned separately through discovery and forensic analyses 

that NetLogix had destroyed and fabricated evidence. See, e.g., CP 180 at~~ 

6, 8. On October 6, 2011, T-Mobile filed a motion to dismiss the Federal 

Action. See CP 154. It showed NetLogix created and backdated thousands 

of documents, supposedly proving T-Mobile approved work that NetLogix 

performed at the "original contract prices." CP 180 ~ 8-183 ~ 18. NetLogix 

also made countless changes to a database (changing prices, adding, deleting 

and altering records), and created fake reports. CP 188 ~ 25-192 ~ 36. 

Dillon's interviews corroborated this evidence. With its dismissal 

motion, T-Mobile provided (among other things) portions of the verbatim 

notes of the interviews. CP 124 ~ 44, 198 ~59. NetLogix responded with a 

declaration from Dillon asserting the transcripts did not "accurately depict the 

conversation." CP 242 ~ 9. NetLogix and Akrie also sued in Superior Court 

against Petitioners, T-Mobile, and Kennan, Akrie v. Grant, No. 11-2-37695-

8SEA, asserting the calls were recorded in violation ofRCW 9.73.030. 

At an evidentiary hearing in federal court, Dillon admitted the 
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transcripts were accurate, CP 252:10-12, CP 252:25-253:3, but he insisted his 

statements were "exaggerated" or "made out of frustration." E.g., 

CP 256:17-19; CP 259:24-CP 260-5; CP 278:14-21. T-Mobile's counsel 

asked him to identify statements he claimed were untrue, but he "stifled that 

effort," testifying in an "objectively vague, evasive, and inconsistent" 

manner. CP 161:3-4. 

The federal court found Dillon "was telling the truth" when he spoke 

to DWT, did "not [tell] the truth during his subsequent testimony" and was 

"wholly incredible," CP 164:7 -9; 166: 12, writing: "Dillon has deliberately 

and repeatedly lied to both [DWT] and the Court in the form of informal 

communications, sworn declarations, and in-court testimony." CP 168:13-

15. It found Dillon and Akrie "complicit" in a "pattern of dishonesty" and 

"willful spoliation." CP 168:19-20. Dillon showed "a breathtaking lack of 

respect for ... this Court, and the judicial process," and "continue[ d] spinning 

a web of lies," leaving him "no credibility whatsoever." CP 168:16; 169:19-

22. Thecourtdismissedtheclaimswithprejudice.CP 171:17-18; Volcan 

Group, Inc. v. T-Mobile USA, Inc., 940 F. Supp. 2d 1327 (W.D. Wash. 2012) 

(Appendix B). NetLogix appealed; the Ninth Circuit affirmed (Appendix C). 

In opposing the spoliation motion, NetLogix argued the transcripts 

were inadmissible under RCW 9.73.030 as illegal "recordings." CP 338-

40; 351-52; see 240 ~~ 3-4; CP 361 ~ 3. Judge Martinez ruled otherwise: 

Dillon clearly understood that Defendant's counsel 
intended to use the information he was providing in 
connection with these [the federal] proceedings, and Dillon 
even offered to provide them with a sworn declaration 
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regarding his statements. As such, those statements were 
not intended to be, and were not in fact, "private." 

CP 170 n.7. 

C. The Superior Court Dismissed Both Akrie v. Grant and 
this Action Under the Anti-SLAPP law, But the Court 
of Appeals Reversed the Second Dismissal. 

Before Judge Martinez issued his order, Superior Court Judge Andrus 

dismissed Akrie v. Grant, finding it was a SLAPP prohibited by RCW 

4.24.525. CP 429-30. The court held that Akrie and NetLogix had no 

standing because they were not parties to the interviews and filing the 

transcripts in federal court could not be a basis for liability. CP 423:15-23; 

CP 423:11-14. Akrie and NetLogix initially appealed but then dropped their 

appeal, and the Court of Appeals held on Petitioners' cross-appeal that the 

statutory damages should have been $10,000 per defendant, or $50,000 total. 

Shortly after dismissal of Akrie v Grant and the notice of appeal in the 

federal case, Dillon filed this suit (represented by NetLogix's counsel), 

asserting again that Petitioners illegally "recorded" the interviews. CP 1-7; 

CP 154-71. Petitioners moved to dismiss under RCW 4.24.525 and Rule 56, 

arguing the case was another SLAPP. CP 120-43. The court granted the 

motions and found Dillon had no expectation of privacy in the interviews, see 

CP 842 at 44:6-45:10; CP 807-08, 964-67, 1120-29. It awarded Petitioners a 

portion of their fees and $10,000 each. CP 807 -08; 1155-57. 

Division I of the Court of Appeals reversed, concluding there were 

fact questions regarding whether Dillon had an expectation of privacy in the 

interviews and holding that the anti-SLAPP statute does not apply. 
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V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED 

A. By Misinterpreting "Public Participation and Petition," the 
Court of Appeals' Decision Jeopardizes Constitutional Rights 
the Anti-SLAPP Statute Is Designed to Protect. 

The Legislature enacted RCW 4.24.525 to curb SLAPPs, i.e., 

"lawsuits brought primarily to chill the valid exercise of the constitutional 

rights of freedom of speech and petition for the redress of grievances." S.B. 

6395, 61st Leg., 2010 Reg. Sess. (Wa. 2010). The trial court found Dillon's 

lawsuit was a SLAPP because it targeted "lawful activity in connection with 

a judicial proceeding." CP 112 7: 1 0-18. The Court of Appeals disagreed, 

narrowly parsing the law to find it does not protect conduct in petitioning a 

court for redress and does not apply to federal constitutional rights. This 

interpretation is inconsistent with the statute's language and history. And, by 

helping a party who lied to a court to cover up a fraud, it does the opposite of 

what the Legislature intended, i.e., encourages "reprisal through abuse of the 

judicial process," see Laws of 2010, ch. 118 § (1 )(d) (legislative findings and 

purpose). The decision raises significant constitutional issues of substantial 

public interest, which this Court should review. RAP 13.4(b)(3), (b)(4). 

The Court of Appeals found the trial court erred because the phrase 

"lawful activity in connection with a judicial proceeding" "improperly 

combines language from two separate subsections" in the anti-SLAPP law. 

Op. at 24-25. In fact, RCW 4.24.525(2) does not limit the definition of 

protected conduct but states that "an 'action involving public participation 

and petition' includes" "any claim, however characterized," involving "[a]ny 

oral statement made, or written statement or other document submitted, in ... 
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a judicial proceeding,"§ 2(a), or "in connection with [a] ... judicial 

proceeding,"§ 2(b), or "[a]ny other lawful conduct ... in furtherance of the 

exercise of the constitutional right of petition,"§ 2(e) (emphasis added). 

Petitioners transcribed witness interviews for use in a "judicial proceeding" 

or (at a minimum) "in connection with" such a proceeding, which is also 

conduct in furtherance of the right of petition. RCW 4.24.525(2)(a), (b), (e). 

The Court of Appeals' interpretation is strained. First, it did not even 

discuss that the explanation of "an 'action involving public participation and 

petition' includes" the examples in subsections (2)(a) through (2)(e). "[T]he 

statute's use of the term 'includes,' denotes a non-exclusive exemplary 

listing." State v. Hall, 112 Wn. App. 164, 169, 48 P.3d 350 (2002) (citing 2A 

Norman Singer, STATUTES & STATUTORY CONSTRUCTION§ 47.07 at 231 (6th 

ed. 2000) ("includes" is usually a term of enlargement, not limitation)). 

Second, the opinion contorts subsection (2)(e), which protects "[a]ny other 

lawful conduct ... in furtherance of the exercise of the constitutional right of 

petition." The term "other" indicates the preceding examples, e.g., actions in 

or in connection with judicial proceedings, also are conduct in furtherance of 

the exercise of the constitutional rights of free speech and petition. 

But the Court of Appeals went on to hold that subsection (2)(e) does 

not encompass conduct in judicial proceedings. The Court reasoned as 

follows: (1) RCW 4.24.525(2)(e) refers to only one constitutional right 

(because of the word "the"); (2) that must be the state constitutional right of 

petition in Article 1, section 4; (3) while the First Amendment right of 

petition encompasses access to the courts, some Washington cases have 
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suggested Article 1, section 4 "is a political right that does not encompass ... 

the right to access courts," Op. at 32; and ( 4) therefore, the reference to "the 

right of petition" in the anti-SLAPP law does not protect against retaliatory 

lawsuits attacking lawful conduct in judicial proceedings. Op. at 28-36. 

The Court of Appeals' view undermines the anti-SLAPP law. The 

federal and state constitutions recognize the right of petition and access to the 

courts. 1 Nothing suggests that, in using the terms "the constitutional right of 

free speech" and "the constitutional right of petition," the Legislature 

intended the anti-SLAPP act's protections to apply only to state rights. To 

the contrary, the Legislature found that "SLAPP suits are designed to 

intimidate the exercise of First Amendment rights and rights under Article I, 

section 5 of the Washington state Constitution." Laws of2002, ch. 232, § 1 

(emphasis added). The House report for the bill that became RCW 4.24.525 

states: "The First Amendment to the United States Constitution provides the 

right 'to petition the government for a redress of grievances," which "covers 

any peaceful, legal attempt to promote or discourage governmental action at 

any level and in any branch," including "filing complaints" or "reporting 

violations ofthe law." House Bill Report SSB 6395 (Appendix E). And the 

Legislature directed that RCW 4.24.525 be "construed liberally to effectuate 

its general purpose of protecting participants in public controversies from an 

1 "The right to petition the government, article I, section 4 of the Washington State 
Constitution, is to be interpreted the same as the federal provision." Grant Cnty. Fire 
Prot. Dist. No.5 v. City of Moses Lake, 150 Wn.2d 791, 815, 83 P.3d 419 (2004) (citing 
Richmondv. Thompson, 130 Wn.2d 368, 381,922 P.2d 1343 (1996)). The Court of 
Appeals stated that Richmond and Grant County were not "controlling." Op. 34 n.28. 
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abusive use of the courts," Laws of 2010, Ch. 118 § 1. 

This Court and others have consistently interpreted the anti-SLAPP 

act to protect the exercise of First Amendment rights. See, e.g., Segaline v. 

State, 169 Wn.2d 467,473,238 P.3d 1107 (2010) ("The purpose ofthe 

statute is to protect the exercise of individuals' First Amendment rights 

under the United States Constitution and rights under article 1, section 5 of 

the Washington State Constitution.") (citing RCW 4.24.510 statutory notes) 

(emphasis added). Indeed, three weeks ago, the Court of Appeals-and two 

ofthe same judges in this case-wrote: "Because the legislature's intent in 

adopting RCW 4.24.525 was to address 'lawsuits brought primarily to chill 

the valid exercise of the constitutional rights of freedom of speech and 

petition for the redress of grievances,' this court looks to First Amendment 

cases to aid in its interpretation." City of Seattle v. Egan, 317 P.3d 568, 

2014 WL 390416, at *1 & n.8 (Wash. App. Feb. 3, 2014) (citing Laws of 

2010, ch. 118, § 1 and Laws of2002, ch. 232, § 1) (emphasis added). 

Read sensibly, "the constitutional right of petition" in RCW 

4.24.525(2)(e) refers to individuals' general right to petition for redress from 

government, including through the courts-a right secured by and which 

predates the federal and state constitutions. McDonald v. Smith, 472 U.S. 

479,482-83 (1985) ("The historical roots ofthe Petition Clause long antedate 

the Constitution."). The Court of Appeals' view not only lacks support, it 

would undermine the anti-SLAPP law's purpose. A disgruntled party in 

litigation could file a baseless lawsuit against his opposing party and its 

attorneys based on lawful conduct in the litigation, and the anti-SLAPP law 
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would provide no protection. This Court should correct this misreading, 

which conflicts with its decisions and the Court of Appeals' decisions and 

raises issues ofpublic interest. See RAP 13.4(b)(l), (b)(2), and (b)(4). 

B. The Court of Appeals' Failure to Analyze the Circumstances of 
the Lawsuit Guts the Anti-SLAPP Law's Protections. 

Based on Dillon's complaint, the Court of Appeals found "the 

principal thrust of [his] claims" to be "SDR's acts oftranscribing Dillon's 

telephone calls ... , not [the] subsequent submission of the transcripts ... to 

the federal court." Op. 26. It concluded "SDR's acts oftranscription are 

not statements" under RCW 4.24.525(a) or (b), and "Dillon's claims are 

not 'based on an action involving public participation or petition," Op. at 

26, 40-41. This is a grave departure from the anti-SLAPP law and its 

spirit and risks converting it to a mere requirement of pleading niceties. 

The anti-SLAPP law requires courts to look beyond a plaintiffs 

allegations to determine whether a claim is a SLAPP. It applies to claims, 

"however characterized," targeting public participation and petition. 

RCW 4.24.525(2). It provides that "the court shall consider pleadings and 

supporting and opposing affidavits stating the facts upon which the 

liability or defense is based." RCW 4.24.525(4)(c). The Court of Appeals 

failed to do this, accepting Dillon's allegations and characterizations, 

ignoring the suit's context, and scolding Petitioners for arguing that

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