No.89961-4

RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON Mar 24, 2014, 4:17 pm BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

No. 69300-0



IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION I

JASON DILLON, an individual; *Appellant*,

٧.

SEATTLE DEPOSITION REPORTERS, LLC, a Washington company; DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE, LLP, a Washington Company; JAMES GRANT and Jane Doe Grant, individually and the marital community composed thereof if any;

Respondents.

ON APPEAL FROM KING COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT THE HONORABLE BRUCE HELLER

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

I.	INTRODUCTION AND RELIEF REQUESTED
II.	STATEMENT OF FACTS
III.	LEGAL ANALYSIS7
A.	The Anti-SLAPP Statute Was Not Designed To Provide An Exception to the Privacy Act For Lawyers
B.	Davis Wright's Claim That Its Right to Public Participation and Petition Have Been Gutted By the Court of Appeal's Decision Demonstrates Its Perceived Entitlement to Be Above the Law
C.	Davis Wright Grossly Misinterprets the Privacy Act And the Facts To Justify their Attempt to protect against "Fraud on the Court."
D.	Davis Wright Lawyers Lie to a Witness and Violate His Right to Privacy But Claim it Is Okay Because Judge Martinez Found Dillon not Credible in Court
IV.	CONCLUSION13
	TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
	Page(s) Cases
	Dillon v. Seattle Deposition Reporters et al., 316 P.3d 1119 (2014))

Ellwein v. Hartford Accident and Indemnity, 142 Wn.2d 766 (2001)
State v. Clark, 129 Wn.211 (1996)
State v. Slemmer, 48 Wn. App. 48 (1987)
OTHER AUTHORITIES
Page(s)
The Privacy Act, RCW 9.73.0301
RCW 4.24.525(2)(a)-(d)1, 9
DDC 4.1

INTRODUCTION AND RELIEF REQUESTED

The Washington Court of Appeals Division I in Dillon v. Seattle Deposition Reporters et al., 316 P.3d 1119 (2014) made the right decision when it found that a lawyer taping a conversation with a witness without first obtaining permission from the witness is not protected activity under the anti-SLAPP statute (RCW 4.24.525), nor does it further the right to free speech or to petition the government for redress. Instead it is potentially criminal conduct, just as it is for any other person that violates the Privacy Act (RCW 9.73.030). However, because of the vehement arguments Petitioners (hereafter "Davis Wright") has put forth seeking to justify this behavior in spite of the clear language of RCW 9.73.030 requiring all party consent, the implication is that this is not an isolated incident but instead is likely a pattern and practice that the firm seeks to protect and continue. Consequently, this Court may consider using this case to both reaffirm the law as set forth by the state legislature and also to set the standard for lawyer conduct that apparently the Federal Court and trial court did not want to discuss.

Davis Wright provides four different legal theories for why this court should accept review and each argument will be answered in kind.

The four "arguments" raised by Davis Wright put into the contexts of the

facts of this case are (1) If Davis Wright lawyers can be held accountable for secretly recording a witness interview, the then the right of the public to petition and the premise of the anti-SLAPP statute will have been gutted. See Petition for Review pages 9-13; (2) the Appellate Courts refusal to allow Davis Wright to turn the plain language of Dillon's complaint into an anti-SLAPP claim, eliminates the protections of the act; (3) Dillon is a bad actor and therefore there must be a lawyer's exception to the Privacy Act i.e., the ends justify the means; and (4) collateral estoppel will cease to exist if Davis Wright is held to the same standard of lawyer conduct as everyone else.

Cutting to the chase, this case is now about whether there is one rule for Davis Wright in pursuit of litigation and another rule for every other person, business or industry that uses the telephone to speak with people. Davis Wright continues to try and shift the analysis from their conduct to that of Mr. Dillon. Again, this case is about whether or not it is legal in Washington for attorneys to secretly record witness interviews, period. Davis Wright made the recordings so this case is about its conduct. Furthermore, the public at large, and most likely every other lawyer in this state understands that you cannot tape witness interviews without getting their permission. Davis Wright, through its conduct knew it was pushing the bounds of ethical conduct, but proceeded anyways in

order to secure an advantage in litigation. The ends should not justify the means in the legal system, at least in the state courts of Washington. Frankly the fact that Davis Wright insists that secretly recording to a witness (after lying to them) is protected activity under the SLAPP statute and the first amendment should actually be deemed frivolous, but respondents recognize that at least some judges were loath to penalize the Davis Wright firm and acquiesced to the conduct – merely stating that Davis Wright should not be proud of itself.

Respondent understands that the right to privacy is a big issue in society today, it is discussed on the news virtually every day with the government wiretapping phones, reading emails etc.. The Court of Appeals Division I had the fortitude to stand up to illegal conduct that strikes to the core of our legal system – there is not one rule for certain lawyers, and another for everyone else. If the message sent by the Court of Appeals is not loud enough to end certain litigation practices, by all means this Court should determine whether the rights to privacy are going to be incrementally eroded by lawyers who deem themselves above the law.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

The following facts are in the record and undisputed: Mr. Dillon

told Ms. Keenan that he would only speak to them if the telephone calls would be "private and confidential." CP 581:6-18. Davis Wright attorney, Ms. Keenan, told Mr. Dillon that she and her law partner Jim Grant would keep the conversations private and confidential. CP 581:6-"But for" the expressed DWT agreement to keep the 18-582:4. conversations private and confidential, Mr. Dillon would not have engaged in the conversations in the first place. CP 581:19-582:4. Grant chose not to tell Dillon of the fact that he was recording the conversations at any time in either of the telephone conversations. CP 586-643; 645-716. Grant lied about "Thad," Thad was not Grant's "assistant." CP 648. In the second conversation, September 19, 2011 when Grant followed up with Dillon, trying to get Dillon to sign a declaration, Grant still concealed the fact that he had recorded the prior, August 25 conversation. CP 586-623. After the recordings hit the internet, and Dillon exploded at Grant for making them, Grant's first response was not to claim that the conversations were not private. Instead, he wrote an email back to Dillon saying Dillon "consented" to the recording. CP 629. A reasonable inference from this was that Grant knew that the Privacy Act required "consent" for recordings because the Grant knew the conversations were "private," he knew that he was violating it without consent, so he was trying to dupe Mr. Dillon into believing that he had given consent in an effort to get Dillon to drop the issue. Grant later said he told the court reporter, Thad, to stop the tape recording and to erase the tape. CP 635:25-636:4. Davis Wright lied about the tape recording in declarations they drafted before they believed anybody might find out about the tape or that they erased it. Mr. Grant then claimed the conversations were subject to his work product privilege, and he even refused to turn over the transcript of the conversation to Dillon unless Dillon consented to a protective order. CP 629, 633. Attorneys must have a good faith basis for making legal claims. "Under the law of privileged communications, a spoken conversation between two persons is not confidential if it is made in the presence and hearing of a third party." State v. Clark, 129 Wn.211, 226 fn 14 (1996). Mr. Grant presumably knew the rules of privilege, so it is reasonable to infer from this fact that Grant subjectively believed the conversations were not public; they were private and confidential. In fact, Grant believed the conversations were so private that he refused to turn over his recording to Dillon unless Dillon consented to a protective order so that he would not provide them to anyone else! Grant, by signing his name to his work product claims demonstrated that he held the good faith belief that the conversation was private and confidential work product. See CR 11.

It is professional misconduct for an attorney to make a clandestine

recording of a witness interview, without the witness' knowledge or consent. It is reasonable to infer that a non-lawyer has a reasonable expectation that attorneys like Grant and Keenan, will themselves know and follow the rules of professional ethics. RPC 4.1(a) prohibits lawyers from lying to witnesses. It was reasonable for Mr. Dillon to assume that Davis Wright attorneys would comply with the ethical rules and not lie to him about keeping the conversations private and confidential.

Furthermore, where is the missing 6 minutes from the August 25, 2011 recording and why did Grant and Keenan first lie about, then destroy the tape of it? A reasonable inference from this spoliation is that there was something on the missing 6 minutes "unhelpful" to DWT. See, e.g. Ellwein v. Hartford Accident and Indemnity, 142 Wn.2d 766, 783 fn.14 (citing Jeffrey S Kinsler and Anne R. Keyes MacIver, Demystifying Spoliation of Evidence, 34 Tort & Ins. L.J. 761, 775 "In its strictest form, the "spoliation inference" establishes prima facie the elements of the injured party's claim that cannot be proven without the missing evidence." All these facts and the facts set forth above in the briefing, viewed in a light most favorable to Mr. Dillon, permitted the reasonable inference that Mr. Dillon subjectively and objectively believed that the conversations were private; that the Davis Wright attorneys and even the court reporters knew that the conversations were private and should not have been

recorded.

The conversations were private. The Washington Court of Appeals finally enforced the standard of conduct required under the Privacy Act, and ended the fallacy that clever attorneys are above the law.

III. LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. The Anti-SLAPP Statute Was Not Designed To Provide An Exception to the Privacy Act For Lawyers.

Davis Wright asks this Court to reward its conduct. What lawful activity did Davis Wright engage in? Here, the record establishes the fact that Jim Grant made the secret recording after he expressly agreed with Mr. Dillon that the conversations were private. Again, there aren't two sets of rules for agreements, one for agreements with likable witnesses which attorneys have to keep, and a different one for unlikeable people that attorneys don't have to keep. There is one rule that applies to everybody. Dillon expressly told Grant that he would only speak to them if the conversations were private and confidential. Grant expressly told Dillon that the conversation was private and confidential. Then they engaged in the conversations. The Petition for Review completely ignore these facts in the apparent hope that this Court will overlook them too. Davis Wright had a court reporter from Seattle Deposition Reporters record verbatim a witness conversation without telling Mr. Dillon. The

Privacy Act says that a conversation cannot be recorded without all party consent. Mr. Grant never told Dillon he was recording. The anti-SLAPP statute was not passed in order to make any activity of a lawyer protected from reprisal. Being hired to litigate a claim does not give a lawyer free reign to violate the rights of others and then claim protected status. Davis Wright's Petition for Review is disturbing in how it reeks of entitlement. Davis Wright thus far profited greatly by the illegal conduct, and now hopes to gain more by perverting both the Anti-SLAPP Statute and the Privacy Act in one fell swoop. If this Court wants to create one set of laws for Davis Wright, while at the same time telling Police officers and insurance agents and telemarketers that they must comply with the Privacy Act, then by all means the Petition for Review should be granted. Otherwise, the decision of the Washington Court of Appeals division I should stand unaltered.

B. Davis Wright's Claim That Its Right to Public Participation and Petition Have Been Gutted By the Court of Appeal's decision demonstrates Its Entitlement to Be Above the Law.

Nearly every person in this state has heard "this call may be recorded for quality assurance" or if they have been in an accident, the first words from the insurance adjuster are "and I have your permission to record this statement," and in depositions the witnesses is told that the court reporter

is taking down the testimony. These statements are made to the witnesses and callers because they are required by the law. Davis Wright wants this Court to carve an exception to that law, but such an exception should receive legal scorn, not acquiescence. The legislature didn't grant the exception, this court should not either.

The following is protected under anti-SLAPP RCW 4.24.525:

- (2)(a): ..testimony and documents submitted to a court, etc.
- (2)(b): ..testimony and documents submitted in connection with an issue under consideration by a court, etc.
- (2)(c): ..testimony and documents likely to encourage public participation in legislative process, judicial process, etc.
- (2)(d)...statements made in an open public forum in connection with an issue of public concern, etc.
- (2)(d).....other lawful conduct...in furtherance of the constitutional right of free speech in connection with an issue of public concern or in furtherance of the exercise of the constitutional right of petition.

Noticeably absent from this list is "the act of secretly recording witness interviews, by lawyers, for their use in a private lawsuit." Secret recording for use in a private lawsuit is not speech, it is not a statement, and it is not an issue of public concern or the constitutional right of petition. Anti-SLAPP protects public speech and protest because they are necessary pillars of a free society. Wiretapping, secret recording, lying to witnesses to get them to talk angrily about their former bosses in order to get advantage in a lawsuit is criminal, dark, and ethical misconduct. There is a difference and the anti-SLAPP statute should not be interpreted so

blindly as to miss that difference.

Furthermore, Davis Wright again seeks to focus on the motives and activities and others, while claiming theirs are above reproach. Davis Wright again tries to make this case about Dillon, even requesting that this Court explore Mr. Dillon's motives and whatever other wild accusations they can think of, instead of simply reviewing the complaint. Petitioners argue that the Court is not limited to the pleadings, which seems to be a suggestion that the court or an opposing party can go ahead and make up whatever facts it thinks appropriate to support an anti-SLAPP claim. Here, the Complaint was very clear to not address anything having to do with court filings or witness testimony- it had nothing to do with the mechanism of the public judicial process. It dealt only with the act of the recording. Davis Wright, however, wants to essentially rewrite the complaint, add facts and add claims, then turn around and alleged that those added claims are subject to anti-SLAPP. The Court of Appeals saw the ruse and declined to engage in it.

Alternatively, and this is really what the defendants are asking, is that the defendants are claiming that they are entitled to make secret recordings of witness interviews, and this practice is protected by anti-SLAPP simply because it's part of their litigation strategy. What they are really arguing is that they can break any law or ethical rule, but so long as they are doing

it in litigation, it is permissible and protected under anti-SLAPP. Now they want the Supreme Court to approve of their litigation tactic because they have been successful at convincing others to acquiesce to it. This Court should decline to allow the arguments to go any further.

C. Davis Wright Grossly Misinterprets the Privacy Act and the Facts To Justify their Attempt to protect against "Fraud on the Court."

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